
 

 

 
 
 

 
   14 March 2013 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 26 March 2013 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in 

The Park Suite, Fleming Park Leisure Centre, Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, Irish, Noyce, Pragnell, Scott, Sollitt and Trenchard 
 
Co-Optees: C Abraham (5.0 Club), E Bonnon (Swimming), S Boote (Running),  
  L Browning (Swimming), J Coxen (Badminton), R Cutler (Tennis),  
  J Gardner (Mini Soccer), S Johnson (Squash), C Jones (Running),  
  S Kemish (Judo), P Kirkpatrick (EDSAD), L Massey (Ballet), D Moore 

(Bowls) and E Szary (Fitness) 
 
D C Leisure: P Leamore and J Parker  
 
Eastleigh Borough Council: J Birt 
 
Staff Contact: Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer Tel: 023 8068 8133;  

Email:  julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   
 
Refreshments will be available from 6.30 pm 
 
Please bring any leaflets about your Club to the meeting, where they can be 
exchanged with those from other Clubs 
 
 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

AGENDA 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. General Management Report    (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
4. Update from Clubs     
 
 
 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 15 October 2013 at 7:00 pm 

at The Park Suite, Fleming Park Leisure 
Centre, Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh 

 
 

 



1 

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 
 

Tuesday, 16 October 2012  (7:00 pm – 8:35 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Broadhurst (Chairman); Councillors Irish, Scott and Trenchard 
 
Co-opted Members: C Abraham, L Browning, A Hardy, C Jones, P Kirkpatrick, 
S Martin and E Szary 
 
Representing DC Leisure: P Leamore and J Parker  
 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council: J Birt 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Noyce and Pragnell, 
and from Steve Johnson (Fleming Park Squash Cub), L Massey (Parkewood 
School of Dance) and D Moore (Fleming Park Bowls Club) 
 

1. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 3 April 2012 were agreed as a correct 

record. 
 
Matters Arising: 
 
On Minute 3, Paul Kirkpatrick reported that ASDA was still to respond to a 
funding application from EDSAD, and another option was currently being 
explored.   
 
On Minute 4, the Sport and Active Lifestyles Manager reported that the 
closing date for the Eastleigh Sports Awards 2012 was 30 November.  
Details were available on the Council’s website and an Awards Evening 
would be held on 6 February 2013 at the Ageas Bowl. 

 
2. GENERAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
 The Sport and Active Lifestyles Manager introduced a report which 

provided updates on maintenance and major projects, attendances and 
customer comments in relation to Fleming Park. 
 
Major projects  
 
Between March and August 2012 these included: 
 
• Replacement of cardiovascular equipment in the gym  
• Overhaul of showers in the Pavilion changing rooms and refurbishment 

of changing areas  
• Replacement of lights in the Main Hall  
• Works to the pool and poolside. 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

 
Fleming Park Development Plan 
 
At a meeting of the Council’s Cabinet on 17 July 2012, the role of the 
Fleming Park Leisure Centre in promoting healthy, active lifestyles had 
been acknowledged and future improvements at Fleming Park (including 
the leisure centre and Pavilion on the Park) had been agreed in principle.  
These improvements would provide quality facilities and activities for both 
local people and visitors.    
 
Cabinet had also approved the commissioning of an audit of the current 
facilities accompanied by a detailed options and business case for moving 
forward.  A report was to be presented to Council by early 2013, and in the 
interim opportunities would be provided for key stakeholders, including 
members of this Group, to give their views to the Consultant.  A 
programme for consultation was currently being devised. 
 
Attendances 
 
Total attendances between March and August 2012 had risen slightly by 
approximately 2,000 visits compared with the same six month period the 
previous year. 
 
A growth of 3% had been seen in swimming figures, equating to nearly 
5,000 extra visits.  Football attendances were no longer declining and 
figures were slightly above those of last year.  It was acknowledged that 
account had to be taken of changing fads in sports.  The FA, for example, 
was currently encouraging small sided games and moving away from grass 
pitches.  Attendances at the over 50’s sessions had declined slightly, but 
were still impressive and these sessions were always busy.  Squash 
attendances continued to grow and had increased by 7%.  Gym figures 
had risen slightly and aerobics had seen a slight fall, but together the 
figures were about the same as last year.   
 
Vandalism/anti-social behaviour 
 
DC Leisure and Borough Council staff had been working closely with the 
Police in an attempt to reduce the increased number of acts of vandalism 
or anti-social behaviour within the leisure centre and the Fleming Park 
campus.  A number of measures had been taken to address this issue and, 
in addition, diversionary activities over the summer had been provided by 
the very successful Parksport programme for 8–16 year olds.  This had 
resulted in a dip in anti-social behaviour at the leisure centre and the free 
swimming element of the programme had attracted 6865 visits to Fleming 
Park.  A discussion took place concerning security and it was agreed that 
this was an issue which must be taken into account in plans for the 
improvement of the leisure centre. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 
 

2



3 

 
  

 
3. PROPOSED SCALE OF CHARGES FROM JANUARY 2013 
 
 Consideration was given to a report of the Sport and Active Lifestyles 

Manager, an appendix to which contained charges for facilities at Fleming 
Park proposed jointly by Borough Council officers and DC Leisure 
managers.   
 
The overall target yield for increases was set by the Council and the figure 
for 2013 was a minimum yield of 4%.  However, some charges would be 
below and some above this figure, depending on a number of factors.   
 
The proposed charges reflected Cabinet’s agreed budget guidelines, 
together with a number of other factors such as usage trends, operational 
costs, recent investment, competitors’ pricing policies and the customer’s 
ability to pay.   It was acknowledged that the current economic conditions 
had affected customers’ disposable income, but equally DC Leisure 
continued to incur the rising costs of energy, staff and maintenance. 
 
The Group noted that: 
 
• Friday Night Football relied on external funding, which was under 

threat.  Therefore the hire charge had been frozen again. 
• Charges for the ambassador membership and some of the artificial 

pitches had also been frozen because of the economic climate and 
competitors’ policies 

• Some of the proposals might seem high in percentage terms, but the 
actual rise in money should be taken into account and also there was a 
“rounding up” effect to ease problems with change for customers and 
reception staff.  

 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
4. UPDATE FROM CLUBS 
 
 Eastleigh and Oaklands Swim Club: Lydia Browning reported that: 

 
• Membership numbers had increased after the summer break and the 

Club was almost at full capacity; 
• The Club’s name was to be changed to Eastleigh Swimming Club; 
• The Club had won medals in the Rother League and had come second 

in the Area Gala.  One Club member had qualified for the Nationals; 
• From 31 October, early morning swimming sessions would be held from 

5.30am to 6.55am on Wednesdays and 6am to 7.25am on Saturdays. It 
was queried whether a hot drink vending machine could be provided, as 
the café was not open at these times.  The General Manager agreed to 
investigate this; 

• Ideally the Club would like some more pool time especially on 

3



4 

Wednesday and Friday evenings.  This had been reviewed but 
unfortunately there was no available hire time currently; 

• Cleanliness of the changing rooms on Sunday nights was a particular 
problem, which the General Manager agreed to investigate. 

 
EDSAD: Paul Kirkpatrick reported that: 
 
• An issue had arisen with cleanliness on Tuesdays; 
• Membership remained static.  New members were needed, although it 

was good that some members could leave and move on to mainstream 
swimming.  The Buddy scheme had had a positive effect on this. 

 
5.0 Club: Ann Hardy reported that: 
 
• New members joined the Club every week; 
• Customers felt that the prices in the café were too expensive, even with 

a discount; 
• One lady member had won silver in the European badminton 

Championships.  The Club had won 2 golds, a silver and a bronze in 
badminton at the REACT Games; 

• The cleanliness of Studio 1 was a problem for the special needs group 
on  Saturdays and for the 5 0 Club on Monday mornings; 

• An activity session for special needs children had been running for 3 
weeks on Tuesday afternoons.  19 children attended and enjoyed the 
sessions. 

 
Eastleigh Running Club: Colin Jones reported that: 
 
• The Club would have been established 25 years in February 2013; 
• Membership was growing, with currently more female members than 

male; 
• A beginners’ course had been held in the spring, which was attended 

by 40 people, most of whom joined the Club; 
• The coaches were doing well, and some athletes were being 

recognised nationally; 
• A 10 week course for 18-25 year olds had started, on three sites: 

Barton Peveril, Eastleigh College and Fleming Park; 
• The Club would be involved in the Eastleigh 10K in March 2013; 
• Dog walkers were using the grass running track, and unfortunately dog 

mess was being left on the track; 
• The Club met outside the Park Suite at 7pm, but would like somewhere 

else to meet, if possible, as over the winter it was often cold, dark and 
wet.  This involved 80 people for a maximum time of half an hour. The 
General Manager agreed to look into an alternative meeting place. 

 
Fleming Park Bowls Club: Stuart Martin reported that: 
 
• This had been a difficult season, due to the heavy rain.  He thanked the 

Council for the drainage work that had been undertaken, and more 

4



5 

work was to be carried out over the coming winter.  However, 12 league 
games had had to be postponed, although they had been played at a 
later date;   

• A dinner to celebrate the Club’s 75th anniversary had taken place 
recently, attended by John Bell, a former England bowls player;    

• A break-in attempt had taken place at the Club, but the intruders had 
been deterred by the alarm. A quick response had been made by the 
Police;    

• A Club junior from the under 25s had taken part in the national 
championship and another member had reached the Southampton and 
District singles championship; 

• The Club’s annual dinner was to take place in November. 
 
Gym Users: Eddie Szary reported that: 
 
• Gym users considered that the Centre staff were friendly, the 

instructors first rate and that the facilities provided value for money.  
However, there were still some issues around the cleanliness of public 
areas and some conifers were overgrown in the car park; 

• It had been suggested that education, making clear the benefit of 
exercise classes, would be useful, perhaps in the form of information or 
workshops. The General Manager agreed to liaise with the Health and 
Fitness Manager on this, with a view to investigating the provision of 
information in electronic form. 

• Cleanliness was also an issue for members, especially in Studio 1. 
 
Fleming Park Squash Club:  the Democratic Services Officer reported on 
behalf of Steve Johnson that: 
 
• Attendances as a whole were showing an increase, and the Club 

continued to retain a core membership group with regular guest 
attendance; 

• It had been possible to keep memberships and guest fees static this 
year, but a further review of costs would be required after the court fees 
for 2013 had been confirmed; 

• It was very noticeable that courts 3 and 4 were looking well used and 
that the paintwork would benefit from a refresh if that was an option for 
2013; 

• At any given time a number of lights were also not working across all 
four courts and, although players asked for them to be replaced, this 
often seemed to take a long time.   

 
The General Manager confirmed that courts 3 and 4 were to be painted in 
December 2012.  With regard to the lighting, the 8 foot tubes were no 
longer available and on Court 3, the lights had fused.  An energy saving 
scheme was being investigated and, if approved, would be installed in the 
next financial year.  In the interim, repairs would be carried out to the lights 
on Court 3.  The lights on Courts 1, 2 and 4 were currently all working. 

 

5



6 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 The Chairman advised that County Councillors had access to a small 

budget which could be used for community projects.  However, it could 
only be used for funding capital costs, or for revenue costs for starting a 
new project.  Details could be found on the County Council website, or he 
could provide more details if required. 

 
6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 At the Chairman’s request, it was agreed that the date of the next meeting 

should be changed from 9 April 2013 to 26 March 2013. 
 
4902 
 
 

6



 

1

FLEMING PARK CONSULTATIVE GROUP 

Tuesday 26 March 2013 

GENERAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 

Report of the Sport and Active Lifestyles Manager 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and that Group 
Members make any comments on the issues raised. 
 

Summary 
 
This report provides the Group with updates on the key issues in relation to Fleming Park. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Act 1988, Section 19 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976  

 

Introduction 

1. DC Leisure manages Fleming Park on behalf of Eastleigh Borough Council. 
The partnership has been in force since December 1991 and the current 
contract runs until March 2020. The general management report is produced 
for each Consultative group meeting. 

Update on Maintenance and Major Projects from September 
2012 – February 2013 

2. There have been a number of major projects during this period and these are 
listed below:- 

ITEM DETAILS 

Bar/Café and 
Gym Changing 
Rooms  

Air handling units replaced 

Dryside and Male 
Group Changing 
Rooms 

Refurbishments to both areas completed 

Agenda Item 3

7



 

2

Squash Courts Courts 3 and 4 repainted 

Centre shutdown Centre closed on the morning of 28th December to 
allow for the installation of a cable which serves the 
new housing estate (Sirocco Park) 

Male Gym 
Changing  Extract fans replaced 

Artificial Turf 
Pitch/Tennis 
Court lights 

Replaced 

Poolside barriers Permanent barriers have now been installed. These are 
working well as they are restricting out of hours access 

Pool plant Main Pool valve and Learner Pool pump replaced 

Main Pool New extract fan installed 

Overflow Car 
Park 

Speed ramps, new directional signage and double 
yellow lines have now been added to this area 

 

Forthcoming projects 

3. The Paddling Pool tank and surrounds will be refurbished in the close 
season. The Pool will be ready for use as normal at the end of May. It is 
recognised that this is an important facility for local residents especially and 
Councillors were very keen to support this project. 

 
4.  The Artificial Turf Pitch (ATP) and the 3 All Weather Pitches (AWPs) are 

showing signs of significant wear. This is to be expected given their age and 
DC Leisure and Council Officers are reviewing the options available to 
enhance the current standards of provision. Extensive maintenance for the 
ATP is likely to be undertaken in March/April as the pitch is unplayable after 
heavy rain. The surfaces to the AWPs may be replaced later in the year. 

 
5. The Artificial Bowls Green carpet is coming to the end of its life. Parkside 

Bowls Club has also expressed concern about the integrity of the concrete 
base and so consideration is being given to a replacement carpet and 
repairs to the base from the end of September. 

 
 Fleming Park Development Plan 
 
6.  Extensive consultation has now taken place with key stakeholders including 

members of the Consultative Group. 
 

8



 

3

7. At the time of writing, receipt of the Consultant’s draft report is awaited. This 
means that a verbal update will be provided at the Consultative meeting. 

8.      The Pavilion on the Park is making progress with its plans for expansion and 
an exhibition of these plans and also an accompanying survey are in place. 
The proposals at the Pavilion will complement any plans for the parkland and 
future leisure centre.  

 Customer comments 

9. The majority of customer comments related to cleanliness and maintenance 
issues which is not unusual for a leisure complex. 

10.      A review of cleaning standards and rotas has taken place. Regular 
inspections by the Centre’s Management Team are in place. 

11. The majority of maintenance issues related to showers and water/air 
temperatures and these were resolved either by refurbishment or replacement 
of technical equipment some of which is detailed in paragraph 2.  

12.     The number of comments has reduced from last year which is a very positive 
sign. 

 Vandalism/anti-social behaviour 

13.    As Group members may recall, there had been an increasing number of acts 
of vandalism or anti-social behaviour within the leisure centre and the Fleming 
Park campus. DC Leisure and Eastleigh Borough Council have been working 
closely with the Police in an attempt to reduce this level of crime. 

14. In addition to the measures reported at the last Consultative Group, the 
installation of a gate across the adjoining walls of the Park Suite and Studio 3 
has now been completed. To-date this has prevented illegal access to the rear 
staircases and therefore access to the roofs. 

15.  Number punch locks have been installed in areas which are considered most 
vulnerable such as the Park Suite. 

16. A mystery visit by the police revealed that there had been huge improvements 
and it is also evident that crime levels have fallen. Whilst this is great news, 
the Centre’s Management Team has not become complacent and there is a 
desire to continually improve in this area. This is a standing agenda item for 
internal staff meetings and also meetings with the Council. 

 Change of ownership 

17.  DC Leisure has been acquired by Places for People (PfP) who now own 
100% of the share capital in DCL Holdings Ltd but the day-to-day business of 
the DC Leisure group will remain unchanged. 

9



 

4

18. PfP is one of the largest, award-wining property management and 
development groups in the UK that focuses on creating inspirational homes 
and aspirational places. Whilst rebranding is being considered, there will be 
no discernable difference to customers at Fleming Park. It is business as 
usual. 

Special event 

19. Fleming Park was definitely in the spotlight as the nation’s media descended 
on Eastleigh for the recent By-election. The Centre was the venue for the 
Count. Staff dealt exceptionally well with the many last minute requests and 
the event went smoothly from an organisational perspective.  

Conclusion 

20.     Fleming Park continues to be a popular facility but certain elements are 
showing signs of wear. The forthcoming months will be extremely important in 
determining the future leisure offer at this flagship site. 

 

JULIA BIRT 
Sport and Active Lifestyles Manager 

 
 
Date: 4 March 2013  
Contact Officer: Julia Birt 
Tel No: 023 8068 8291 
e-mail: Julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 
CR:    CR307 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 100D 
The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 
Background Papers - None. 
 

10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
	3 General Management Report

